

Bylaws

Au Sable River Property Owners Association

Organized in 1966 – incorporated as a Non-Profit Corporation in Michigan in 1969

Article I

Name, Nature and Purpose

Section 1: The Au Sable River Property Owners Association is an incorporated, non-profit, voluntary association of owners of Michigan riparian property located in the watershed of the upper Au Sable River system and other parties interested in the preservation of the natural resources of this area. The upper Au Sable River watershed begins at its sources, runs down stream to the Mio Dam, and includes the Au Sable main stream, North Branch, East Branch, South Branch and Big Creek and all of their tributaries.

Section 2: The purpose of the Association is to preserve, protect, and enhance the area's great natural endowments of wilderness scenery, unpolluted cold water streams, and stable forest habitat for the enjoyment of future generations. The Association will strive to accomplish this purpose through the education, motivation, and mobilization of individuals, public, private, and governmental organizations and by taking such other action as may be necessary or desirable.

Article II

Member Meetings

Section 1: Meeting of the members of the association shall be held at least annually and at times and places to be designated by its Board of Directors upon at least ten (10) days advance written notice mailed to the last known address of each member, provided that any insubstantial irregularity in the giving of notice shall not effect the validity of any such meeting. A majority of members initially present at any meeting shall constitute a quorum.

Section 2: Membership meeting may be held at the call of the President or, in his absence, of the Vice-President or by a majority of the Board of Directors, or upon demand in writing signed by not less than thirty-three (33) percent of the members in good standing, presented to the Secretary who shall give at thirty (30) days written notice to each member in good standing of the time, place, and purpose(s) of the meeting.

Article III

Board of Directors

Section 1: The property, management, and direction of the Association shall be controlled by a Board of twelve (12) Directors each of whom shall be a member in good standing. The members of the Board of Directors shall be representative of the area represented by the association as evenly as

practicable. Directors shall be elected by the membership either by the use of ballots mailed to all members or in a meeting called for that purpose, at intervals of not less than twelve (12) months. Directors shall be elected for staggered terms of office, not less than three (3) years in length, so that only four (4) directors shall be elected annually. Vacancies in the Board of Directors may be filled by the remaining members of the Board of Directors.

Section 2: The Board of Directors shall hold meetings upon such notice and at such times as may be decided by the President or upon written request of three (3) Directors. At least seven (7) days advance written notice of Board meetings shall be mailed to Directors unless notice waived in writing. A majority of Directors shall constitute a quorum, but a lesser number may meet and adjourn to a fixed date. Directors are expected to attend a minimum of sixty (60) percent or 5 meetings a year, including the annual general membership meeting, to remain a member in good standing.

Section 3: The President shall serve as Chairman of the meetings of the Board of Directors. In the absence of the President, the Vice-President shall serve, and in the absence of the Vice-President, a Director selected by the Directors shall serve as Chairman.

Section 4: A Director shall not be re-elected to a full three (3) year term unless the Board of Directors first determines that re-election is in the best interests of the Association.

Section 5: The Board of Directors, by affirmative vote of a majority of the Directors then in office, may elect one or more alternate Directors who shall be members in good standing, and shall have no authority EXCEPT when an Alternate Director's presence is needed to constitute a quorum of Directors, and then the Alternate Director who is present and necessary to constitute a quorum for a meeting of Directors may exercise all of the authority of a Director as long as that Alternate Director's presence is necessary to maintain a quorum at a meeting of Directors. The term of office of an Alternate Director shall be one (1) year from the date of election.

Article IV

Officers

Section 1: The officers of the Association shall be President, Vice-President, Secretary, and Treasurer.

Section 2: The officers shall be elected by the Board of Directors at a meeting to be held immediately following the annual meeting of members. They shall serve until the next annual meeting of members or until their successors are elected.

Section 3: The President shall have the general and active management of the affairs of the Association. With the Secretary, the President may sign and execute in the name of the Association, all contracts, agreements, and other obligations of the Association, subject to the approval of the Board of Directors. The President shall have the general supervision and direction for all the other officers of the Association, and shall see that their duties are properly performed. The President shall perform such other duties as from time to time may be assigned by the Board of Directors.

Section 4: If the office of President is vacant for any reason, the Vice-President shall become President and serve as such for the unexpired terms. The Vice-President may perform any of the duties of the President when directed to do so by the Directors.

Section 5: The Secretary shall keep the minutes of all meetings and a record of all other voting of the Board of directors and members; shall keep an accurate and current record of all members; shall be custodian of all records, papers, files other than those of the Treasurer. The Secretary, with the President, may sign and execute in the name of the Association all contracts, agreements, and other obligations of the Association, subject to the approval of the Board of Directors. The Secretary shall at all reasonable times exhibit the books and records of the Secretary to any Director upon request, and shall perform generally all the duties pertaining to the office of Secretary of an Association subject to the control of the Board of Directors.

The Secretary shall be the recording officer of the Association; and shall keep a record of all proceedings and meetings of the Association; shall keep an accurate and current record of the membership roll; and shall make the minutes and membership records available to members upon request and for solely personal use.

The Secretary shall be the custodian of all records, papers, reports, and files of the Association. The Secretary shall maintain record book(s) in which the by-laws and minutes are entered along with any amendments to those documents properly recorded, and shall have the current record books on hand at every meeting.

The Secretary shall mail to members and Directors notices of their meetings and conduct the general correspondence of the Association that is not a function proper to another officer.

Section 6: The Treasurer shall have the custody of all funds, and other property of the Association; when necessary or proper shall endorse on behalf of the Association for collection: all checks, notes, drafts, and other instruments and deposit same to the credit of the Association in such financial institution as the Board of Directors may designate: and all checks or drafts for the disbursement of funds of the Association shall be signed by the Treasurer or the President. The Treasurer shall cause to be entered regularly in the books of the Association, kept for that purpose, full and accurate accounts of funds received and paid on account of the Association and whenever required by the Board of Directors. The Treasurer shall at all reasonable times exhibit the books, records, and accounts of the Treasurer to any Director and shall perform generally all the duties pertaining to the office of Treasurer of an Association, subject to the control of the Board of directors.

Article V

Executive Committee

The Board of Directors may authorize the creation of an Executive Committee composed of the President, Vice-President, Secretary, Treasurer, and one or more other Directors to act with the authority of the Board of Directors. The Executive Committee is empowered to act for the Association between meetings of the Board of Directors, subject, however, to the ultimate approval of the Board of Directors.

Article VI

Conduct of Meetings

At all times when the organization as a whole or any part thereof, including meeting of the Board of Directors, the Executive Committee, or Committees, are duly and formally convened for the purpose

of deliberation and transaction of business, the most current edition of Robert's Rules of Order shall govern the meetings on all matters relating to order and procedure, include nominations and elections.

Article VII

Membership

Section 1: Membership in the Association is voluntary, and open to all who support the purpose of the Association. Term of membership shall be annual and begin on August 1 of each year and end on July 31 of the following year. No Director or officer shall disclose to anyone else the name or address of members except as approved by the Board of Directors.

Section 2: Annual membership dues shall be established by the board of Directors and may be accorded special designations relating to the amount of dues paid.

Any member current in payment of dues may attend and vote at any meeting to the members and has voting rights. Any organization or entity interest in the objectives of the Association may become a member, but it shall have one vote, which may only be cast by the designee identified in an official notice filed with the Secretary before such designee may vote. Any such notice shall remain in effect until notice of a new designee is filled by the member with the Secretary.

Special assessments of the members may be made only as recommended by the Board of Directors and approved by the members at a membership meeting called for that purpose.

Article VIII

Waiver of Notice

Whenever any notice is required to be given under the provisions of the bylaws, a waiver in writing, signed by the person entitled to notice, whether before or after the time stated in the notice, shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice.

Article IX

Gifts

The Association may accept gifts in support of its purpose. Acceptance of any gifts other than money shall first require approval of the board of Directors.

Article X

Amendments

These bylaws may be amended or supplemented at any meeting of members if the notice of the meeting set forth the content of the proposed amendment or supplement.

